
 

Growth, Infrastructure & Housing Select Committee 
agenda 

Date: Tuesday 20 July 2021 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: 
The Oculus, Buckinghamshire Council, Gatehouse Road, HP19 8FF - 
Aylesbury 

Membership: 

D Carroll (Chairman), T Hunter-Watts, M Smith, A Baughan, Q Chaudhry, T Hogg, S Rouse, 
M Bracken, N Brown, S Chapple, I Darby, M Hussain, C Etholen, C Poll and D Town 

Webcasting notice 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed. 

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. 
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s 
published policy. 

Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the 
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit. 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at 
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

Agenda Item 
 

Time Page No 

1 Chairman's Welcome and Introduction   
    
2 Appointment of Vice-Chairman   
    
3 Apologies for Absence/ Changes in Membership   
    

mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


4 Declarations of Interest   
    
5 Minutes of the previous meetings  3 - 10 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the 

meetings held on 25th March and 26th May 2021. 
 

  

6 Priorities for the year ahead 14:10 11 – 20 
 The Committee will receive reports from the Leader, the 

Cabinet Member for Planning & Regeneration and the 
Cabinet Member for Housing, Homelessness & Regulatory 
Services outlining their respective priorities for the year 
ahead. 
 
Contributors: 
Cllr Martin Tett, Leader, Buckinghamshire Council – 
Presentation to follow 
Cllr Gareth Williams, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for 
Planning & Regeneration – Presentation attached 
Cllr Nick Naylor, Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Homelessness & Regulatory Services – Presentation 
attached 
Mr Ian Thompson, Corporate Director, Planning, Growth 
and Sustainability  
Mr Steve Bambrick, Service Director, Planning and 
Environment 
 

  

7 Work Programme 15:20  
 An opportunity for Members to discuss possible topics for 

the future work programme. 
 
Contributors: 
All Members 
Mrs Kelly Sutherland, Scrutiny Manager 
 

  

8 Date of next meeting 15:40  
 Thursday 14th October 2021 at 10am 

 
  

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Kelly Sutherland on 01296 383602, email 
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 



 

 

Growth, Infrastructure & Housing Select Committee 
minutes 

Minutes of the meeting of the Growth, Infrastructure & Housing Select Committee held on 
Thursday 25 March 2021 in MS Teams, commencing at 10.00 am and concluding at 11.40 
am. 

Members present 

D Barnes, D Carroll, S Chapple, N Marshall, R Newcombe, C Poll, R Raja and M Winn 

Others in attendance 

S Bowles, M Tett and W Whyte 

Apologies 

D Knights, G Moore, B Roberts and C Rouse 

Agenda Item 

1 Declarations of Interest 
 There were none.  

 
2 Minutes 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2021 were agreed as a correct 

record. 
 

3 COVID 19 and local economic recovery 
 Members received an update from the Leader of the Council, Martin Tett, and the 

Cabinet Member for Town Centre Regeneration, Steve Bowles, on Covid-19 and local 
economic recovery in Buckinghamshire. Although the country was still in lockdown, 
the Government had revealed its four-step roadmap back to a more normal life. This 
had included children and students returning  to face-to-face education in schools 
and colleges. The report outlined the current situation for businesses and  those 
unemployed in Buckinghamshire. Businesses continued to face cash flow pressure 
and reduced turnover. However, there was evidence that businesses were adapting 
during the three lockdowns and had become more resilient. Financial support grants 
for businesses remained in place to compensate for loss of business due to the third 
lockdown. The Council continued to administer these grants, which included the 
latest Government grant announced on 22 February, and its own Bucks Additional 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Restrictions Grant (ARG) to support businesses unable to apply for Government 
grants. It was estimated that the Council had distributed 94% of funds delegated by 
the Government and it was hoped that Government funds would be released to 
allow another round of ARG grants.  
 
The Government’s recent Budget 2021 included an extension of the furlough 
scheme and the UK wide Self Employment Income Support scheme until September 
2021. The ‘Build Back Better: our plan for growth’ publication had also been 
presented by the Government and the report highlighted some of the main 
headlines. Eight new freeports would be opened in England with the nearest ones to 
Buckinghamshire being in East Midlands and Thames.  
 
Local authorities would assist with the reopening of high streets through various 
measures such as temporary pavement licences being extended for a further 12 
months and relaxation of planning rules to allow pubs and restaurants to operate as 
takeaways.  The Council had been allocated £481.5k from last year’s ‘Reopening 
High Streets Safely Fund’ which had specific spend criteria. Outstanding funds 
needed to be spent by 30 June 2021. A work programme was in place to support the 
reopening of Buckinghamshire high streets and a ‘Welcome Back’ campaign had 
been developed.  
 
During the subsequent discussion, Members made the following key points: 
 

 There was a need to evaluate the negative impact Covid had had on 
inequalities within Buckinghamshire. Another important aspect was 
assessing Covid’s impact on education.  

 The Council’s ranking of 8th out of 265 local authorities for ARG distribution 
was based on percentage of funding distributed.  

 The Council planned to address litter across Buckinghamshire and had a 
schedule of events planned to coincide with the phasing of lockdown easing 
between April – June.  

 Town centres had benefited from being allowed to have pavement licenses 
as they had created a more vibrant atmosphere that enticed footfall. The 
high street would look different post-Covid and the Council needed to 
consider further ways to attract footfall through methods other than retail 
such as leisure and heritage.  

 The Council was conducting an audit of all its properties to consider any 
suitable alternative uses. There were Customer Access Points in libraries for 
residents that had been set-up after Buckinghamshire became a unitary 
authority however the pandemic had temporarily closed the majority of 
these.  

 The Community Boards had funding to work with local communities and high 
streets. The Council had allocated funds for the Boards to consider climate 
change and economic regeneration in their areas.  

 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Members for their attendance and the update.  
 

Page 4



 

 

4 Future High Street Fund 
 The report was introduced by Steve Bowles, Cabinet Member for Town Centre 

Regeneration. Buckinghamshire Council had submitted a full bid to the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in July 2020 for £17.2m of 
capital funding for Future High Streets Funding for High Wycombe. The bid also 
included £3.4m Council Capital contribution and £400k of private sector funding to 
generate a total programme of £21m. On 26 December 2020 an announcement was 
made by MHCLG that funds were allocated to the High Wycombe bid at a level of 
69% of the total bid so £11.8m or a total programme of £15.4m including capital 
contribution. To receive the allocation, the Council needed to revise the bid and had 
done so by removing some of the projects within the programme. The projects were 
grouped into three strategic aims and geographical locations: 
 
The Western Gateway 
Buckinghamshire Council was undertaking improvements around High Wycombe 
station independently and this project sought to remove redundant, vacant space at 
the Western Gateway. The details of the programme were outlined in the report.  
 
Old Town, New Town 
This aimed to address one of the fundamental challenges within High Wycombe high 
street. The Eden Centre had created a footfall draw for the Town however this 
footfall did not go past the Shopping Centre doors. The project aimed to create a 
critical mass of activity just outside the door of Eden by developing a space that 
attracts attention and draws people further into the high street. 
 
The Southern Gateway 
This project aimed to create an Arts, Culture and Entertainment cluster based upon 
the existing Swan Theatre at the Southern Gateway. Plans for the Liberal Club were 
ongoing as was the possibility of creating a new riverside piazza in front of the Swan 
Theatre.  
 
The Council had produced its revised bid ahead of the end of January deadline. 
Officers expected MHCLG to release £11.8m funds in May/June 2021. After this, the 
programme for delivery would commence. It was hoped that the funds would also 
assist in the regeneration of High Wycombe’s high street.  
 
The following key themes were discussed by the Committee: 
 

 The proposed plans intended to draw footfall into the town centre through 
the different offerings in the programme. Other plans for High Wycombe 
were being considered by the Regeneration Board.  

 Beyond acquisition, some projects or sites may involve partnership working 
to deliver improvements in the areas.  

 The Chiltern Centre was part of the Dandura planning application. One 
Member felt that incorporating more restaurants into this area would 
increase footfall. The Cabinet Member would investigate whether the ground 
floor of the application was residential or commercial.   

Page 5



 

 

 One Member commented that the Chiltern Centre would benefit from an 
allocation of affordable housing.  

 Any project involving the reopening of the River Wye was aspirational and 
required dedicated funding.  

 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for the update.  
 

5 The local authority planning process and the Local Enforcement Plan 
 The Chairman welcomed Warren Whyte, Cabinet Member for Planning and 

Enforcement. The Cabinet Member presented an update on the council’s planning 
enforcement service and the progress on the Buckinghamshire Local Plan. The 
Council had adopted the Local Enforcement and Monitoring Plan in June 2020 and 
the planning enforcement service had adapted significantly to react during the 
pandemic. The pandemic had presented challenges due to a lack of simple face to 
face communication between officers as well as additional Covid safety measures in 
place at site inspections. The service had been working hard to deliver service 
improvements during the pandemic. The Planning & Environment Service was 
nearing the end of its management restructure and the team was halfway through 
its service review having recently completed its discovery phase. The team had 
received 1,278 new reports of alleged planning breaches during the first three 
quarters of 2021/22 which was similar to the combined cases across the five legacy 
authorities over the past two years. Since April 2020, the team had increased the 
number of formal actions taken against breaches of planning control. 50 
enforcements notices had been issued since vesting day. The team was focused on 
progressing cases swiftly and taking decisions as early as possible in the 
enforcement process. The Cabinet Member encouraged Parishes, Members and 
residents to report alleged breaches as soon as possible so that the service could 
react accordingly. Some recent successful enforcement cases were highlighted 
which included cases at Nash Park, Great Missenden and Iver.  
 
A consultation for further modifications to the Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan (VALP) 
had closed on 9 February. Four further days of hearings would be held by the 
Examination Inspector 13 – 16 April. It was hoped that, subject to the Inspector’s 
final report, the VALP would be adopted by Summer 2021. The Buckinghamshire 
Local Plan for the whole Council area was in its early stages. The Local Development 
Scheme had been agreed and consultation on the Statement of Community 
Involvement was currently taking place. A call for brownfield sites was also currently 
underway. A number of Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) had been 
prepared to provide more detailed guidance on implementing specific proposals and 
policies in local plans. The report highlighted particular SPDs such as Biodiversity 
Accounting, Hollands Farm and Princes Risborough Expansion. Additionally, the 
Council had submitted a robust response to the Government’s Planning White Paper 
consultation and MHCLG was working through the consultation responses they had 
received.  
 
After the Cabinet Member’s update, the Committee raised the following points:- 
 

Page 6



 

 

 A Member commented that it would be useful for all Councillors to be 
briefed on all types of possible enforcement action and notices that could be 
carried out by the service. There were plans for enforcement to be included 
as part of Member induction following elections in May.  

 The Planning Committees received updates regarding enforcement activity at 
their public meetings. Enforcement updates to ward Members would be 
considered as part of the service review.  

 The enforcement service had the resource and intention to follow through 
complex cases to resolution with the recent case of waste clear up at Nash 
Park field being an example of this. Regarding staffing, the service had a new 
Enforcement Manager and was recruiting two Team Leaders. The service 
currently had two Technicians (one vacancy), 11 officers and 1 Principal (0.8 
vacancy). It was expected that the team would be fully staffed by late 
Spring/early Summer. The service did not second staff from other areas but 
there was a cross council taskforce to discuss cases (e.g. advice from Legal or 
Waste).  

 Land ownership issues were not within the remit of the enforcement service. 

 One Member suggested utilizing an enforcement app for reporting that 
would work similarly to the Transport for Bucks ‘Fix My Street’. The Cabinet 
Member advised that IT would have a significant role in the service 
improvement plan and development of reporting tools would be considered.  

 The Cabinet Member was aware of concerns about the impact that new 
developments had on existing nearby pavements and highways.  The Head of 
Planning Policy and Compliance, Darran Eggleton, advised that it was 
important that planning conditions were carefully worded to enable proper 
enforcement.  

 One Member highlighted that Local Plans took considerable time to 
implement which risked the finalized plan becoming outdated. The service 
did aspire to deliver a future proofed Buckinghamshire Plan and would 
consider how the overarching policy framework would link in with 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) to enable some flexibility to 
respond to changes e.g. environmental standards.   

 One Member suggested that access to Community Infrastructure Levy (CILs) 
should be considered by the Committee at a future meeting. The Cabinet 
Member advised that CILs would be reviewed and updated as part of the 
new Buckinghamshire Plan. The Government White Paper also referred to a 
National Infrastructure Levy which the Council was awaiting further 
information on.  

 The Policy team was well resourced and working on the local plan with 
experienced staff from all the legacy councils.  
 

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member and officers for attending the meeting 
and providing the update.  
 
 

6 Date and time of next meeting 
 This was the last meeting of the Select Committee ahead of the local elections in 

Page 7



 

 

May. The Chairman thanked all Members and officers for their work and support at 
the meetings over the past year.  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

Buckinghamshire Council 

Growth, Infrastructure & Housing 
Select Committee  

 
 
 
 

Minutes 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GROWTH, INFRASTRUCTURE & HOUSING SELECT COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 26 MAY 2021 IN MAIN SPORTS HALL, STOKE MANDEVILLE STADIUM, 
GUTTMANN ROAD, AYLESBURY HP21 9PP. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
A Baughan, M Bracken, D Carroll, S Chapple, Q Chaudhry, I Darby, C Etholen, T Hogg, T Hunter-Watts, 
M Hussain, Z Mohammed, C Poll, S Rouse, M Smith and D Town 
 
Agenda Item 
 
1 APOLOGIES 

 
 Apologies had been received from Councillor N Brown. 

 
2 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

 
 Resolved: that Councillor D Carroll be elected Chairman of the Growth, Infrastructure and 

Housing Select Committee for the ensuing year. 
 

Page 9

Appendix 



This page is intentionally left blank



Click to edit Master title style

Click to edit Master subtitle style

12/07/21 1

Click to edit Master title style

Click to edit Master subtitle style

12/07/21 1

Planning and Regeneration
Cllr Gareth Williams

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Scope of Portfolio 
Planning Policy 

• The Planning Policy team are responsible for developing and maintaining the policies which set the 
foundation to enable sound and robust planning decisions. A key area of work for this team is 
development of the new Buckinghamshire Local Plan for adoption in 2025, and adoption of the Vale 
of Aylesbury Local Plan (VALP) is anticipated later this year.

• A number of key milestones in developing the Buckinghamshire Local Plan have already been 
achieved, including Cabinet agreement of the Local Development Scheme, a brownfield “call for 
sites” (with a second call expected later this year) and a public engagement on the Statement of 
Community Involvement.

• Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) provide more detailed guidance on matters set out in 
Local Plans.  Work is progressing on a number of SPDs including for specific sites such as Aylesbury 
South, Hollands Farm and Biodiversity Net Gain.   The team also support Parish and Town councils in 
preparing Neighbourhood Plans.  

Planning Enforcement

• Enforcement and compliance teams monitor developments once approved to ensure that they are 
built within the local plans.  The Local Enforcement and Monitoring Plan was adopted by Cabinet in 
June 2020 and gives an overview of the service and sets out how the Council will investigate alleged 
breaches of planning control and how decisions on formal enforcement action will be made.

• In 20/21, Buckinghamshire Council issued 47 Planning Enforcement Notices (63 formal notices in 
total). This was the 12th highest nationally and the 5th highest of all local authorities outside of 
London.

P
age 12



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Scope of Portfolio 
Development Management 

• The Development Management (DM) team use national and local planning policies to determine 
applications, dealing with around 13,000 planning applications a year. 

• These are determined by officers under delegated arrangements or through the 5 Area Planning 
Committees and Strategic Sites Committee, which all now meet in person having met virtually for the 
first year due to the COVID pandemic.

• The DM team ensure sustainable and high-quality development, securing appropriate mitigation in 
the form of financial contributions or physical improvements through legal agreements.

• Highways DM are responsible for overseeing the delivery of development related highways works 
and the adoption of new residential roads as public highway.

Building Control

• Ensuring compliance with regulations and enforcing standards, the building control team deal with 
around 2,600 building regulation applications each year and undertake in the region of 28,000 site 
inspections. 

• Building regulations are minimum technical standards set by Government which over the 
construction, extension and alteration of most buildings.  They are intending to protect people’s 
health, safety and welfare in and around buildings.

• The team works in direct competition with the private sector, and in Q4 2021/22 had 78.8% market 
share.

P
age 13



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Scope of Portfolio 
Town Centre Regeneration

• Teams in the Economic Growth & Regeneration service are working to regenerate and champion our 
places, ensuring sustainable growth meets the needs of our communities and helps deliver jobs, 
skills, homes, amenities and ultimately produces economic growth. This local priority is reflected 
nationally in the increased access for funds to support investment in our town centres. 

• The current focus of regeneration activity is around Aylesbury (which has Garden Town status and an 
adopted masterplan) High Wycombe and Chesham.  In the past year, engagement has been held the 
first major project from the Aylesbury Garden Town masterplan – Aylesbury Gardenway, a proposed 
18km orbital park that will encircle Aylesbury.   High Wycombe Regeneration Board has been 
established to collectively consider and advise the Council in relation to overall delivery of 
regeneration in High Wycombe. In the past year, we have been successful in receiving £11.7m of 
Future High Streets Funds from Government which will be used for key regeneration schemes in High 
Wycombe. 

• Work is underway to explore development of an overarching strategic regeneration framework which 
will not only cover Aylesbury, High Wycombe and Chesham, but also the other 11 towns across the 
county including Chesham, Amersham, Buckingham, Princes Risborough and Marlow and the large 
villages. 

• Our proposals and initiatives show the ambition of Buckinghamshire to build on its reputation as an 
attractive place to live, work and visit.

P
age 14



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Some areas of focus:
• Progression of the Buckinghamshire Local Plan

• Keeping planning decisions local with five planning committees

• Continue our tough new approach to planning enforcement, taking actions 
where necessary on unauthorized buildings or activities  

• Focusing our policies and decisions on delivering new, ‘green’ growth

• Introducing higher, more energy efficient standards for all new 
developments

• Continuing our commitment to Aylesbury Garden Town and focus on the 
regeneration of Aylesbury, High Wycombe and other town centres (including 
the development of a regeneration framework)

• Supporting the continued development of Neighbourhood Plans across the 
County

• Leading the Planning Improvement Board to deliver lasting and consistent 
improvements to the planning service

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Click to edit Master title style

Click to edit Master subtitle style

12/07/21 1

Click to edit Master title style

Click to edit Master subtitle style

12/07/21 1

Housing, Homelessness & 

Regulatory Services
Cllr Nick Naylor

P
age 17

A
ppendix 



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Some areas of focus:
As well as the services mentioned on the following slides, this portfolio includes Regulatory 

Services which covers: Environmental Health, Trading Standards, Registrars & Coroners, 

Licensing, Cemeteries and Crematoria.  Those elements of the portfolio are scrutinised by the 

Communities & Localism Select Committee. Priorities for the portfolio as a whole are as below:

• Identify surplus public sector land and actively develop this for housing that is affordable

• Require new private developments to include affordable housing for local people and key 

workers

• Maintain virtual elimination of rough sleeping across Buckinghamshire through an integrated 

public health and wellbeing approach

• Work with private residential residents to address issues such as debt or personal concerns 

which risk them becoming homeless

• Introduce a new countywide ‘Homelessness Action Team’ to lead our work

• Development and implementation of key licensing policies

P
age 18



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Scope of the Portfolio (1)
• The Housing service provides housing advice and support to prevent and relieve homelessness, delivers 

and allocates social housing and provides financial support for adaptations and urgent repairs. 

• The service is currently undergoing a service review with a new structure and operating model due to go 
live in August this year.  Having previously been delivered by three area-based teams, there is now a 
single Housing service which will work with partners to provide advice and access to quality, safe, 
sustainable homes to prevent homelessness and improve quality of lives for everyone in our 
communities. The new structure comprises of two parts - Homelessness and Advice and Housing Options 
and Supply. 

• During the pandemic, we responded to the Government’s ‘Everyone In’ initiative and have 
accommodated more than 280 rough sleepers since March 2020.  Approximately 90 rough sleepers are 
still being accommodated.  Officers are developing plans for the next stage of ‘moving on’ rough sleepers 
currently accommodated and for the delivery of advice and support offered to rough sleepers going 
forward.

• Working in partnership with Registered Providers (RPs) and the third sector is key to delivering the 
housing and homelessness service.  We work closely with partners to provide interventions and support 
to relieve and prevent homelessness and rough sleeping.  The Housing Service works with RPs and 
planning colleagues to maximise new build affordable housing. 507 new build affordable homes were 
delivered across Buckinghamshire during 2020/21.

P
age 19



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Scope of the Portfolio (2)
• The Council allocates social housing tenancies via the Bucks Home Choice scheme. Currently, 5012 

households are registered for re-housing and 1337 tenancies were let during 2020/2021 via the scheme.

• The service delivers the Disabled Facilities Grants programme, with adaptations completed in 120 
properties during 2020/21.

• Successful bidding into Government’s Next Steps Accommodation Programme has enabled the delivery 

of move-on accommodation.  This includes 9 units of supported housing for rough sleepers at Ardenham 

House, Aylesbury which will be delivered in partnership with Hightown Housing Association; and 7 units 

of move-on accommodation for former rough sleepers delivered by Harrow Churches Housing 

Association.

• We have also been successful in securing funding from the Rough Sleeper Initiative 4 programme for a 

range of support services and have made bids to the Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme to 

secure further funding for more units of move-on accommodation. The construction of the new 

temporary accommodation scheme at Desborough Road in High Wycombe is progressing well.

• This year, we will be developing new Homelessness and Housing Strategies and expect to bring both of 

these documents forward for adoption later on this financial year.

P
age 20


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meetings
	Minutes
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	6 Priorities for the year ahead
	GIH - Housing  Homelessness V3


